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          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I apologize for

          3  the confusion surrounding today's meeting. This is

          4  budget season and we are prone to have these

          5  unspecified and unexpected changes of schedule.

          6                 Now, let me see, I have a statement

          7  here.

          8                 Good morning. I am Council Member

          9  Archie Spigner, I chair the Council's Committee on

         10  Housing and Buildings. The Committee has been

         11  convened to conduct a first hearing -- someone ring

         12  the bell. I know Stanley is downstairs.

         13                 -- As it has been convened to conduct

         14  a first hearing on Intro. No. 893.

         15                 In brief, this bill modifies the

         16  Administrative Code pertaining to the licensing of

         17  master plumbers, addresses the type of minor

         18  plumbing that can be performed by non-licensed

         19  individuals and provides for changes to certain

         20  permitting practices.

         21                 Notably, this bill extends the

         22  renewal period for a master plumber license from one

         23  year to two years and imposes continuing education

         24  requirements upon licensed master plumbers that must

         25  be completed prior to the renewal of his or her
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          2  license.

          3                 The Committee welcomes testimony on

          4  the merits of this bill and expects to hear from

          5  representatives of the Department of Buildings,

          6  representatives of the plumbing industry,

          7  representatives of the real estate industry, along

          8  with other members of the general public. Anyone who

          9  desires or wishes to present testimony on the bill

         10  before the Committee today should sign in with the

         11  Sergeant-At-Arms, the gentleman with the blue

         12  jacket, lovely multi-colored red tie, bright smile,

         13  eager to serve.

         14                 As I stated earlier, due to the

         15  confusion, we're not going to close the record today

         16  for any member who will come in and want to ask

         17  questions.

         18                 We don't intend to vote, that's

         19  another reason why we are proceeding with this first

         20  hearing, so that we can have some discussion, and

         21  any member of the Committee or the Council will have

         22  an opportunity to discuss with either our staff, or

         23  with the Department of Buildings or other

         24  representatives of industry or the plumbers, we will

         25  be happy to respond to their concerns.
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          2                 So, if you will identify yourself,

          3  sir, and we will be happy to hear your testimony.

          4                 MR. SHOR: Good morning, Council

          5  Member Spigner, Council Members. My name is Stanley

          6  Shor, I am the Chief of Staff of the Department of

          7  Buildings, I'm also the Chairman of the Master

          8  Plumber, Master Fire Suppression Piping Contractors'

          9  License Board. Thank you for the opportunity to

         10  speak today regarding Intro. 893.

         11                 This proposed bill would extend the

         12  term of the license for a master plumber to two

         13  years; require continuing education for Licensed

         14  Master Plumbers as a precondition to renewal of

         15  their license; define what plumbing can be performed

         16  by non-licensed individuals; create a temporary

         17  permit category, and create a category of work that

         18  does not require inspection.

         19                 The Department generally supports the

         20  first three provisions but has serious concerns

         21  about the last two.

         22                 The Department supports the issuance

         23  of two-year plumbing licenses. This would reduce the

         24  Department's workload, as well as reduce the burden

         25  on the license holder.
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          2                 The Department would still be able to

          3  suspend or revoke a license for cause.

          4                 The Department would also like to

          5  review the possibility of extending the terms of

          6  other licenses and the possibility of renewing a

          7  portion of the licenses for one year in the first

          8  year after enactment, and then two years thereafter,

          9  so that all of the licenses do not expire in the

         10  same year.

         11                 As with other professions, continuing

         12  changes in the code and technology make it important

         13  that plumbers continue the learning process after

         14  they are licensed. The Department supports requiring

         15  continuing education for licensed master plumbers

         16  prior to the renewal of their license. The

         17  Department would like to review this requirement to

         18  determine if a seven-hour course is sufficient to

         19  meet the intended goals of this concept.

         20                 Intro. 893 also defines minor

         21  alterations or ordinary repairs. We are generally in

         22  favor of such a definition in the code.

         23                 The Department opposes the proposed

         24  amendments to Administrative Code Section 27-175,

         25  which would allow for certain plumbing work normally

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            7

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  requiring an application for a plumbing permit, to

          3  be treated as an application for an alteration and

          4  repair slip.

          5                 This "temporary" permit would be

          6  filed for by the Licensed Master Plumber to be

          7  followed, within 90 days, by a filing by a

          8  Registered Architect or Professional Engineer.

          9                 In order to ensure that all aspects

         10  of the code and zoning are being complied with, the

         11  Department must require that plans submitted by a

         12  Professional Engineer or Registered Architect be

         13  approved before work proceeds.

         14                 The Department also opposes the

         15  changes proposed for Administrative Code section

         16  27-919. This provision would require the Department

         17  to promulgate rules which would define "minor

         18  plumbing systems" that do not require any

         19  inspections.

         20                 The Department believes that any job

         21  that requires a licensed plumber to do the work,

         22  also requires an inspection. There may be categories

         23  of work for which the Department would accept

         24  inspections performed by a licensed master plumber,

         25  however, the proposed language would need to be
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          2  amended to clarify that there would not be an

          3  exemption in this section for "all" inspection and

          4  testing requirements of this section. In addition,

          5  27-210, which governs all construction inspections,

          6  should in no event be changed to make that

          7  requirement relative.

          8                 I will be happy to answer any

          9  questions you have at this time.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you, Mr.

         11  Shor.

         12                 So, the Department generally supports

         13  the first three provisions, but you have serious

         14  concerns about the last two?

         15                 MR. SHOR: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Well, as in the

         17  history of this Committee and the Council, that's

         18  always, that's not an unreasonable conclusion that

         19  we draw on a first hearing.

         20                 So, that's why we have this hearing,

         21  and if the bill does have merit, I'm sure that the

         22  proponents of this change, in working with your

         23  agency, the Department of Buildings, will work out

         24  some resolutions that will enable the goal of this

         25  measure to be achieved, Intro. No. 893, to be
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          2  achieved without compromising or exposing the

          3  residents of this City to any harm, physical or

          4  otherwise, from the unintended consequences of some

          5  inappropriate measure.

          6                 So, you've explained your reasons for

          7  why you think the work certain, that would be a

          8  self-certification concept, I guess, shouldn't be

          9  extended to various aspects of plumbing work. So,

         10  I'm just going to let -- and I understand what you

         11  said, so I'm going to leave that until one of the

         12  proponents of this measure testifies, and I'm

         13  certain that he will give his reasons for it.

         14                 Just one question that I want to ask,

         15  as to the cost of the bill, of the cost of the

         16  license. Well, not so much the cost of the license,

         17  the seven-hour course, who would that be -- would

         18  you have to set up some kind of plumbing institute,

         19  or could the New York City Community College, like

         20  New York Technical College, or some of the other

         21  trade schools be certified or approved to provide

         22  this training?

         23                 MR. SHOR: Basically, any school that

         24  wanted to provide this kind of training could

         25  propose a curriculum, and would be approved by the
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          2  Department. That's our understanding of how the bill

          3  is written, and we would be in favor of that.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay, so, is

          5  that part of the bill that the Department would have

          6  to approve? Okay, that's part of the bill.

          7                 So, any curriculum or training

          8  facility would have to be submitted to the

          9  Commissioner or whoever acts for the Commissioner.

         10  All right.

         11                 Okay, Commissioner Shor, I want to

         12  thank you for your testimony.

         13                 And before I do that, I hear that

         14  you're moving on to hopefully greener pastures?

         15                 MR. SHOR: Yes, thank you. I'll be

         16  starting at the Department of Information Technology

         17  and Telecommunications on Monday.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Well, you've

         19  been a friend in the Department of Buildings, a very

         20  competent professional, I'm sure you will continue

         21  that tradition in your new assignment.

         22                 MR. SHOR: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member

         24  Michels.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: So you're
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          2  going to DoITT, not DORIS?

          3                 MR. SHOR: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes, good

          5  morning, my namesake Stanley Shor, how are you?

          6  There used to be a lot of Stanleys in this building,

          7  not very many left.

          8                 MR. SHOR: Well, maybe there will be

          9  more in the future.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Hopefully.

         11                 You mentioned in your second

         12  paragraph in your statement on the second page,

         13  Intro. 893 also defines minor alterations or

         14  ordinary repairs, and you say you're generally in

         15  favor of such definition in the code. Are you

         16  satisfied with that definition that they have in the

         17  bill?

         18                 MR. SHOR: It appears to basically

         19  memorialize what our inspectors have been using as

         20  their understanding. We believe, we might want to

         21  work with the Council staff --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: In other

         23  words, you want to broaden the definition on the

         24  restrictive definition?

         25                 MR. SHOR: Maybe make it a little
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          2  clearer. I know that there's some concern with

          3  Council staff, it might not include everything that

          4  would be considered minor, so, you know, we can work

          5  on that.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: It's

          7  important to know what's minor and what's major. And

          8  do you think you can do that fairly quickly?

          9                 MR. SHOR: Sure.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: That will be

         11  good. Before you go to DoITT?

         12                 MR. SHOR: Well, I won't necessarily

         13  do it myself, but there is competent staff that will

         14  do it.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Now, you talk

         16  about your opposition with respect to allowing them

         17  to give a temporary permit followed by a permanent

         18  permit, and you say it shouldn't be done until --

         19  all of the approvals should be done by a

         20  professional engineer or registered architect before

         21  the work progresses?

         22                 MR. SHOR: Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And for what

         24  reason would you say?

         25                 I can think of something myself, I
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          2  would rather you said it.

          3                 MR. SHOR: Well, I will give you an

          4  example, there may be work that gets started that

          5  would violate the zoning, possibly putting in a

          6  bathroom in a basement which would lead to illegal

          7  conversion. It may be a small job, the Department

          8  doesn't realize that that's going to create a

          9  problem for the Buildings Department, he gets

         10  started and then nothing ever gets approved by the

         11  Department and something has to be ripped out. We'd

         12  rather not have the property owner put in that

         13  position that something gets started that's not

         14  going to get approved, and then you have work that

         15  creates a problem.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: It seems to

         17  make some sense.

         18                 And finally, the last objection you

         19  have is the fact that, I guess you can categorize it

         20  as saying that you're opposing changes which would

         21  not require inspections in certain categories.

         22                 MR. SHOR: Yes. And the way the

         23  language is written, it would require us to come up

         24  with categories of plumbing that plumbers are

         25  required to do that wouldn't require any
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          2  inspections.

          3                 We believe that if something is not

          4  minor and it requires a plumber, that at least the

          5  plumber should be inspecting it. And then certain

          6  areas we would still need to inspect it. So, there

          7  would need to be some more discussions about that

          8  language.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: You mean

         10  Building Department inspectors, as opposed to

         11  self-certification?

         12                 MR. SHOR: Well, right now it doesn't

         13  even require self-certification, it doesn't require

         14  any certification. It just says, you know, minor

         15  plumbing systems that don't require inspection or

         16  testing. So, that doesn't even require

         17  self-certification.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Are there

         19  categories now of plumbing work that doesn't require

         20  an inspection of self-certification?

         21                 MR. SHOR: Well, there are categories

         22  now that we would allow self-certification, yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: There's no

         24  categories at all that requires no inspection?

         25                 MR. SHOR: The categories that don't
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          2  require any inspection at all would be minor

          3  plumbing work, which doesn't even require a licensed

          4  master plumber.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Okay, but you

          6  are saying requires a master licensed plumber,

          7  should be subject to self-certification or

          8  inspection?

          9                 MR. SHOR: Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Let me ask

         11  you this: When it comes to self-certification, what

         12  is your method of determining whether or not the

         13  self-certifications are correct?

         14                 MR. SHOR: This would be a challenge

         15  to us to come up with certain categories that are

         16  truly a minor level of work that we wouldn't need to

         17  at some point audit and open up a wall, and it's

         18  been described by the industry as the kind of work

         19  that only costs, you know, a couple of hundred

         20  dollars, and for the plumber to schedule, you know,

         21  to have it at self certified, where they have to put

         22  down a date when they will be there doing the

         23  inspection and have to be subject to spotchecks that

         24  it creates a lot of cost. So, probably low-cost work

         25  that --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: How about

          3  something where you give J-51 approval? Certainly

          4  you have to be there to see the work was actually

          5  done because you are giving the tax break on it.

          6                 MR. SHOR: Right.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Do you do the

          8  inspections on those, plumbing work that requires

          9  J-51?

         10                 MR. SHOR: I'm not familiar with the

         11  operations with regard to J-51, so I couldn't tell

         12  you. But we would have to work with --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Is plumbing

         14  work done now that permits for self-certification?

         15                 MR. SHOR: Yes. There is plumbing work

         16  now that would permit self-certification, but we

         17  also have in that self-certification that the

         18  plumber has to give us the date that he's going to

         19  be doing an inspection and that we can arrive there

         20  by surprise -- well, not necessarily surprise, but

         21  20 percent of the stuff gets inspected by us anyway.

         22                 I think the idea behind this is that

         23  there would be certain categories that we would

         24  waive our option of going there to do the inspection

         25  because it's truly minor.
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          2                 This will require a lot of

          3  discussions to --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: This is work

          5  that has already been completed and the day he is

          6  going to certify it, you know that he would know

          7  that there is a chance of maybe some inspector will

          8  be there to make sure the self-certification is

          9  correct. So there is a chance that you might be

         10  popping up there, like 20 percent you said?

         11                 MR. SHOR: Right. That's what we do

         12  currently.

         13                 I think the idea of this is to have

         14  just a category of work that we feel confident that

         15  the plumber can just sign off on without having to

         16  set aside time for an inspection.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And, of

         18  course, we're talking about things that could result

         19  in danger to their life, health and safety.

         20                 MR. SHOR: We certainly wouldn't do

         21  this guess work, they are kind of things that

         22  require pressure tests. Certainly wouldn't consider

         23  anything that we think would be hazardous, or

         24  potentially hazardous.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Thank you
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          2  very much, Mr. Chairman.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Yes,

          4  Commissioner, just one. On page four of the bill, a

          5  little section, it's section six, section 27 of the

          6  Administrative Code of New York is amended to read

          7  as follows -- and it goes to the bottom, "or the

          8  owner of the premises agrees that a plumbing permit

          9  cannot be obtained, because plans required by this

         10  article have not been approved, and where the owner

         11  agrees to pay penalties pursuant to Section 26-212.1

         12  of this code, if the permit is not obtained within

         13  90 days of the approval of the alteration and repair

         14  slip." Are you familiar with that language?

         15                 MR. SHOR: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Exactly what

         17  does that mean in layman's terms?

         18                 MR. SHOR: My understanding of this

         19  language, which was proposed by the plumbers would

         20  be that the owner of the building would be on the

         21  hook to the Building Department if a plan wasn't

         22  submitted to the Department within 90 days of the

         23  approval of the alteration and repair slip.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: So, the

         25  responsibility for work without a permit goes to the
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          2  owner of the property?

          3                 MR. SHOR: Correct.

          4                 I mean, our feeling is that so the

          5  owner makes sure that an architect or an engineer

          6  comes within 90 days to the Department, that still

          7  doesn't mean that the application is going to be

          8  approved. Because they can file it with us within 90

          9  days, but it doesn't automatically get approved if

         10  there is something wrong with the application.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay, I have no

         12  further questions.

         13                 Thank you, Mr. Shor, and good luck on

         14  your new assignment, new position.

         15                 MR. SHOR: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I

         16  enjoyed working with you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Next we are

         18  going to go with Marilyn Davenport of the Real

         19  Estate Board of New York.

         20                 Ms. Davenport.

         21                 MS. DAVENPORT: Thank you very much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Is the mike on,

         23  or is it my hearing that is --

         24                 MS. DAVENPORT: Oh, okay. Is it on

         25  now?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Yes. I can hear

          3  Mr. Shor, I know he's got a low voice or a soft

          4  voice, or my hearing is going bad or a combination

          5  of the two.

          6                 MS. DAVENPORT: Okay. The bill

          7  provides that an application for a plumbing permit

          8  may be treated as an application for an alteration

          9  and repair slip when one of two conditions exists:

         10  Either the total cost of the proposed work in the

         11  building does not exceed $14,000 over a 12-month

         12  period, or the owner of the property agrees the

         13  plumbing permit cannot be obtained because plans

         14  have not been approved and agrees to pay penalties,

         15  if the permit is not obtained within 90 days.

         16                 Neither of these conditions are

         17  realistic. The dollar figure is outdated and way too

         18  low. Construction costs, especially in the trades,

         19  have skyrocketed in recent years. If the plumbing,

         20  licensing and permitting section of the code is

         21  being amended, this is the opportunity to readjust

         22  the number to allow for increased construction cost.

         23                 We recommend that the threshold be

         24  set at $28,000 at the very least.

         25                 Secondly, the idea that the owner

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            21

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  should certify that a plumbing permit cannot be

          3  obtained for lack of approved plans, and agree to

          4  pay a penalty for work without a permit if one is

          5  not obtained within 90 days, is not good public

          6  policy and we strongly oppose it.

          7                 The legislation has several other

          8  provisions which we do support if these two problems

          9  were cleared up.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay. All right.

         12  That's clear. That's clear. Outrageous, huh?

         13                 MS. DAVENPORT: I didn't actually say

         14  that out loud.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay. I was

         16  distracted for a moment while you were reading your

         17  testimony.

         18                 Okay, you conclude by saying the

         19  legislation has other provisions which you --

         20                 MS. DAVENPORT: We would support. We

         21  think the two-year license is a good idea.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

         23                 MS. DAVENPORT:  Continuing ed is a

         24  good idea.  Designing minor alterations, those are

         25  all good ideas.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And you are

          3  senior vice president of the Real Estate Board.

          4                 MS. DAVENPORT: That's correct.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: That connection

          6  that we extend our condolences to you and your

          7  members on the loss of your president, Mr. Mendig,

          8  who certainly was a contributor, not only to the

          9  real estate industry, but also the City of New York

         10  as a whole.

         11                 Do you have any questions?

         12                 MS. DAVENPORT: Thank you.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes, I would

         14  just like join with you on that, the condolences to

         15  you on Mr. Mendig, who I happened to know quite

         16  well, and I felt sorrow at his loss. And I just

         17  wanted to put on the record that he was a

         18  contributor mightily in his voice and his expertise

         19  to my college, which is Hobart College, as well as

         20  the library at New York Law School, which I did not

         21  go to, but I always knew he was very interested in.

         22                 MS. DAVENPORT: Thank you very much.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And he is an

         24  old friend, and it was a shocking thing to learn of

         25  his passing, and his loss is a great loss to the
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          2  City of New York.

          3                 MS. DAVENPORT: Thank you.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And you can

          5  convey that on behalf of the City Council.

          6                 MS. DAVENPORT: I will certainly

          7  convey that. Absolutely.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay, Ms.

          9  Davenport, thank you.

         10                 We have been joined now by the

         11  Minority Leader, of the Republicans, that is, Mr.

         12  Ognibene.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER OGNIBENE: How are you?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay. Next

         15  person to testify is Mr. Stewart O'Brien, of the

         16  Plumbing Foundation, City of New York.

         17                 Mr. O'Brien, have a seat. Identify

         18  yourself.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER OGNIBENE: My name is

         20  Stewart O'Brien, Executive Director and Counsel of

         21  the Plumbing Foundation. And I have heard almost

         22  unanimity -- everybody seems to agree on the first

         23  three provisions of this bill, so I will skip over

         24  that in my prepared testimony, and only address the

         25  last two items.
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          2                 This bill does have five distinct

          3  provisions, the first three everybody seems to say

          4  is motherhood and apple pie and makes absolute

          5  sense, but let me address just the last two issues.

          6                 The present code requires that any

          7  work performed by a licensed plumber must be filed

          8  with the Department of Buildings and that it must

          9  undergo two separate inspections, a roughing

         10  inspection and a final inspection. While distinct

         11  and multiple inspections make sense for most jobs,

         12  it makes little sense for a job that can be

         13  completely performed in less than a day.

         14                 Under the present code, the plumber

         15  has to do the work on one day, arrange for a

         16  roughing inspection, either by the Department or

         17  through self-certification 48 hours later, and

         18  another inspection for the final work. Again, that's

         19  two inspections.

         20                 The inconvenience to the homeowner of

         21  waiting around for two inspections after the work is

         22  complete, and the cost to the plumber does not seem

         23  worthwhile for small jobs.

         24                 The cost and time spent on multiple

         25  inspection process is sometimes in excess to the
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          2  actual cost of this relatively minor work, and this

          3  inspection cost is passed onto the homeowner.

          4                 Accordingly, the bill contains a

          5  provision for specific types of work designated by

          6  the Commissioner of Buildings, that the individual

          7  inspection requirement could be eliminated and

          8  replaced with a spotcheck by DOB personnel.

          9                 We understand that while the

         10  Administration is in favor of the concept of

         11  reducing the inspection process for small work, they

         12  do not want to eliminate the inspection requirement,

         13  even if the Buildings Commissioner is the one to

         14  decide which kind of work is going to apply. Rather,

         15  the Administration, as I understand it in listening

         16  here, and knowing obviously beforehand, so I wrote

         17  this down, the Administration, as I understand it,

         18  wants the plumber to certify that the work was

         19  installed according to code for small jobs in order

         20  to eliminate the cost and time of unnecessary

         21  inspections.

         22                 Such an amendment to the present bill

         23  would make absolute sense, as long as it is clear

         24  that a licensed plumber can certify that this work

         25  was installed according to code, without requiring
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          2  separate and multiple inspections after the work was

          3  performed. We I think it makes absolute sense, and I

          4  think the Buildings Department said the same exact

          5  thing.

          6                 As long as somebody says, whether it

          7  be the plumber or the Department of Buildings, that

          8  the work was performed according to code, that's

          9  great, just don't keep the multiple inspection

         10  process for work.

         11                 Let me give a quick example. You want

         12  to move your kitchen sink from one side of the room

         13  to the other side of the kitchen. That requires a

         14  roughing inspection and not a final inspection. The

         15  Code says you have to give 48 hours in advance for

         16  them to do the inspection. That means when you move

         17  it over, the plumber moves it over on one day, on

         18  Monday, he does that work on Monday, he'd had to

         19  give 48 hours notice, the inspector would have to

         20  come on Wednesday to look at the roughing, and then

         21  come back another day to do the final. That's three

         22  visits, and that just doesn't make any sense, there

         23  inconveniences to the homeowner.

         24                 So, I think we're all on the same

         25  wavelength to eliminate that requirement.
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          2                 The other section that seems to be a

          3  little controversial is that unlike licensed

          4  electricians who can file and obtain their own

          5  electrical permits by sending in a one-page form to

          6  DOB, licensed plumbers cannot pull a plumbing permit

          7  and start work unless many other people do their

          8  jobs. An architect and engineer must prepare an

          9  application and plumbing plans, an expediter must

         10  bring the documents to DOB, and so forth. Often

         11  trades begin working the site and the owner or

         12  general contractors instructs the plumber to do the

         13  work, but the plumber cannot get a permit because

         14  someone else hasn't done their job.

         15                 The plumber, unlike the electrician,

         16  cannot file directly with DOB. He is instructed to

         17  start work by the owner but cannot pull a permit. In

         18  the real world, rather than lose the job the plumber

         19  is forced to start work, but the permit is not

         20  obtained until later.

         21                 To remedy this situation, Intro. 893

         22  contains a provision that would allow a plumber to

         23  start work under an ARA, an application that the

         24  code presently allows to be filed directly by the

         25  plumber.
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          2                 We understand the Administration and

          3  the Real Estate Board is opposed to this provision.

          4  We suggest an alternative. We recommend an amendment

          5  to Intro. 893, that would allow the removal of

          6  plumbing piping to be added to the list of work that

          7  can be filed by an ARA. The ARA is the thing that

          8  allows, that is presently allowed under the code to

          9  be filed directly by a plumber, doesn't have to wait

         10  for anybody else. This would allow a plumber to

         11  start work, at least the removing of piping, while

         12  the complete permit is being sought.

         13                 Since plumbers can file for ARA's

         14  themselves, work would not start until DOB was

         15  formally notified which plumber was responsible for

         16  the work.

         17                 We believe these five changes are

         18  warranted, and since there is agreement on most of

         19  them, we ask for the Council's assistance in

         20  resolving the few remaining issues as quickly as

         21  possible.

         22                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         23  appear here today.

         24                 Also, Mr. Chairman, I have the

         25  testimony of Elyse Jaeger of the Master Plumber's
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          2  Council, and I'd submit that. It's my only copy but

          3  she was here and because of a scheduling problem she

          4  left, but I will hand that up when I leave. And she

          5  would have testified in favor of Intro. 893.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Just to

          8  reference to a point in the testimony of Marolyn

          9  Davenport about the total cost of the proposed work

         10  in the building does not exceed $14,000, and the

         11  next paragraph says it should be set at $20,000 at

         12  the very least; how does that square with your line

         13  of thinking? As being relevant, appropriate?

         14                 MR. O'BRIEN: Well, obviously it's not

         15  part of this bill, we hadn't discussed it. My

         16  understanding, if I remember correctly, the Council

         17  increased the limit from 7,500 to 14,000 just a few

         18  years ago.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I recall that,

         20  yes.

         21                 MR. O'BRIEN: Yes. And, so, I'm not

         22  sure where the City's position is at. We haven't had

         23  discussions with anybody about that. We haven't

         24  considered it, so, frankly, I just don't have a

         25  position at this time.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: But you don't

          3  instinctively feel it's too low or too high, you

          4  have to give some thought to it.

          5                 MR. O'BRIEN: I have to give some

          6  thought, yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

          8                 We've been joined by Council Member

          9  Nelson. We've already had Council Member Provenzano

         10  here all the time.

         11                 Any questions?

         12                 Thanks, Stanley -- Stewart.

         13                 MR. O'BRIEN: Whatever.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Stewart.

         15                 The next person to testify is Melissa

         16  Barbour.

         17                 Is she here? Ms. Barbour?

         18                 MS. BARBOUR: Right here.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Identify

         20  yourself, Ms. Barbour, and who you represent and we

         21  will be pleased to hear your testimony.

         22                 MS. BARBOUR: Hi. Good morning. My

         23  name is Melissa Barbour. I'm the Assistant

         24  Administrator of the Steamfitting Industry Promotion

         25  Fund, as well as the Assistant Vice President of the
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          2  Mechanical Contractors Association of New York.

          3                 Mr. Chairman, members of the Housing

          4  and Buildings Committee, as I said, my name is

          5  Melissa Barbour, and our two organizations represent

          6  the largest number of sprinkler contractors in New

          7  York City and Long Island, and we are here to

          8  testify in support of Intro. 893, but ask that the

          9  bill be amended to include the following changes:

         10                 We would like the first provision of

         11  this bill, which changes the master plumber's

         12  license renewal period from one to two years to be

         13  amended to be applicable to fire suppression

         14  licenses as well.

         15                 As it stands right now, the renewal

         16  process often results in a loss of work for an

         17  entire day for a contractor, and this change will

         18  increase contractor's productivity, as well as

         19  allowing the Department of Buildings to increase its

         20  productivity, obtain financial savings, as well as

         21  increase personnel resources by significantly

         22  decreasing the amount of time that personnel

         23  currently spent on annual license renewals.

         24                 We also ask that the continuing

         25  education requirement be applicable to the renewal
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          2  of fire suppression licenses, as well. Continuing

          3  education will force contractors to maintain an

          4  appropriate level of knowledge to complete their

          5  projects in the safest, smartest, and most fiscally

          6  responsible way possible.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay, Ms.

          9  Barbour, we will classify your testimony in the

         10  category of enlightened self-interest, okay?

         11                 Any questions for Ms. Barbour?

         12                 Thank you, Ms. Barbour.

         13                 Mr. Timothy Bowe. New York Fire

         14  Sprinkler -- I can't make out that last word, but

         15  you will identify yourself, sir?

         16                 MR. BOWE: Yes. Good morning, members

         17  of the Committee on Housing, ladies and gentlemen of

         18  the New York City Council, my name is Timothy Bowe,

         19  President of ABCO Peerless Sprinkler, a fire

         20  sprinkler contractor, speaking on behalf of the

         21  Mechanical Contractors Association New York and the

         22  New York Fire Sprinkler Contractors Association.

         23                 I feel that the master fire

         24  suppression piping contractor license should also be

         25  included in this legislation.
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          2                 Intro. 893 has been proposed to

          3  change the requirements of, I believe it's local law

          4  55 of 1989, which has required the licensing for the

          5  past 11 years for fire sprinkler contractors.

          6                 Now, the inclusion of a two-year

          7  renewal term I believe will save tremendous amount

          8  of time for the installing contractors and also save

          9  administrative costs for the City, which people

         10  have, prior to my statements, have mentioned.

         11                 The City will also have use of the

         12  funds, parts of them being due, which will help

         13  increase positive cash flow.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: To fill the

         15  budget gap.

         16                 MR. BOWE: Hopefully.

         17                 The second point of the bill, what I

         18  think is also extremely important, is to maintain

         19  professional competency for the license holders by

         20  requiring continuing education.

         21                 As well as plumbing contractors, fire

         22  suppression piping contractors have the health and

         23  well-being entrusted to them for the citizens of

         24  this great city, and as you may also be aware, the

         25  occupational licenses administered by the State of
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          2  New York, that is architects and professional

          3  engineers, have been and will be requiring in the

          4  near future continuing education for maintaining

          5  licensure.

          6                 I believe this bill is a win-win

          7  proposition and will help maintain professional

          8  competency, which is critical when it comes to

          9  protecting the citizens of New York and these

         10  critical systems that allow the smooth operation of

         11  our great City on a daily basis.

         12                 I thank you for the opportunity of

         13  addressing the Council this morning, and I urge you

         14  to support this bill.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Mr. Bowe, thank

         16  you for your testimony, and your requests and

         17  suggestions are reasonable, and I'm optimistically

         18  confident that as we proceed, that your requests

         19  will be given very favorable consideration,

         20  hopefully they will be included in any final version

         21  of this bill. I think it makes good sense.

         22                 MR. BOWE: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay, that

         24  exhausts our list, and there being no further

         25  business before the Committee at this time, we can
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          2  adjourn.

          3                 (The following written testimony was

          4  read into the record.)

          5

          6  Written Testimony Of:

          7  Elyse Jaeger

          8  Executive Director

          9  Master Plumbers Council of the City of New York

         10

         11                 Chairman Spigner and members of the

         12  Committee, thank you for the opportunity to present

         13  the view of the Master Plumbers Council of the City

         14  of New York on Intro. 893. Our comments are brief.

         15                 As most of you know, the Master

         16  Plumbers Council of the City of New York is a

         17  not-for-profit organization that is concerned with

         18  the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of

         19  New York City. Our membership is made up solely of

         20  Licensed Master Plumbers that do plumbing and

         21  heating work throughout the five boroughs of New

         22  York City.

         23                 The Master Plumbers Council agrees in

         24  principle with Intro. 893 which will "amend the

         25  administrative code of the City of New York, in
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          2  relation to extending the renewal period for a

          3  plumbing license to two years, requiring continuing

          4  education for licensed master plumbers to renew

          5  their license; defining what minor plumbing can be

          6  performed by non-licensed individuals and changes to

          7  certain permitting practices."

          8                 First, is the change to section

          9  26-137, which provides for a two-year license

         10  renewal process for licensed master plumbers. We

         11  feel that this amendment to the current code would

         12  help expedite the cumbersome and time-consuming

         13  process of license renewal. By changing the

         14  procedure for license renewal to a bi-annual

         15  process, the Department of Buildings will be able to

         16  review applicants for license renewal in a

         17  systematic fashion.

         18                 Second, Section 26-150.1 provides for

         19  a continuing education requirement for licensed

         20  master plumbers. We feel that the proposed

         21  seven-hour course listed is excessive and we believe

         22  that the New Jersey statute with a five-hour

         23  continuing education course is sufficient.

         24  Continuing education is a vital component of all

         25  professions. We feel that it would benefit the
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          2  licensed master plumbers, as well as the general

          3  public to have such a continuing education

          4  requirement at the five-hour level.

          5                 Third is Section 27-126, which

          6  defines minor alterations and ordinary repairs, and

          7  more clearly enumerates what types of work are to be

          8  done exclusively by licensed master plumbers. This

          9  section of the proposed bill is vital to ensure the

         10  structural integrity of buildings in this city, and

         11  the health and safety of the public. It also clears

         12  up the gray areas existing at this time by defining

         13  minor alterations and ordinary repairs that can be

         14  performed by those other persons who are not

         15  licensed plumbers.

         16                 Fourth, Section 27-175, we are in

         17  agreement with the provision that permits an ARA to

         18  be issued to begin work on a project.

         19                 This ARA permits licensed master

         20  plumbers time to submit architectural plans

         21  necessary within 90 days of pulling an ARA. With

         22  this provision both the City of New York and

         23  property owners can move along the construction,

         24  repair or remodeling process in a timely manner.

         25                 This procedure will speed up work,
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          2  which will attract companies and others to do

          3  business in the City.

          4                 Fifth, Sections 27-210 and 27-919,

          5  allowing the provisions of the bill as stated:

          6                 "The Commissioner shall promulgate

          7  rules identifying the types of minor plumbing system

          8  work that are exempt from the inspection and testing

          9  requirements of this section."

         10                 This allows both property owners and

         11  contractors to move along the process in a more

         12  expedient manner and it will also promote the use of

         13  licensed individuals to do the required repairs. In

         14  this provision all are in a "win-win" situation.

         15                 A bill such as this one encourages

         16  business, property owners and others to make needed

         17  repairs or to promote new business ventures in the

         18  City of New York. Your passage of this bill will

         19  facilitate this process and in the long run will

         20  provide the people of New York with a better quality

         21  of life.

         22                 We look forward to working with the

         23  City of New York to improve conditions for our

         24  members and the public at large.

         25                 Chairman Spigner and members of the
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          2  Committee, thank you for allowing me to testify here

          3  today.

          4                 I will be happy to answer any

          5  questions you have at this time.

          6                 (Hearing concluded at 11:42 a.m.)
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 7th day of June 2001.
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